
 
 

  

  
                   Employees’ Retirement System

Board Meeting
 

December 12, 2012 at 1:30 PM
Conference Room C

Troy City Hall
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084

   (248) 524-3330 

 

A
g

en
d

a 

Roll Call 
 
Minutes from the November 14, 2012 Meeting 
 
Retirement Requests 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Other Business 
Review of Fiscal Year End Report 6/30/12 
Review of 1st Qtr ending 9/30/12 
Review of Investment Manager Search 
Approval of 2013 Meeting Schedule 
 
Investments 
 
Public Comment 
 
Adjourn  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Retirement Board/2011/11.9.11– Agenda 

Name Pietro E. Pizzorni 
Pension Program DB 
Retirement Date 1-12-13 
Department Police 
Service Time 25 yrs, 5 mo. 

Don’t forget the Holiday lunch at 12:00 pm!  
 It will be held at Picano’s Italian Grille. 

 3775 Rochester Road 
Reservation is under Justin. 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft November 14, 2012 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday November 14, 2012 at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  
48084.   
 
The meeting was called to order at 12:04 p.m. 
 
Trustees Present:    Mark Calice 

Thomas J. Gordon, II 
Steve Pallotta 
Dave Henderson 
Thomas Darling, CPA 

      
 
Trustees Absent:   Michael Culpepper 

Milton Stansbury  
     William R. Need (Ex-Officio) 
 
 
Also Present:   Justin Breyer  
     John Grant, UBS 
     Rebecca Sorrenson, UBS 
 
 
Minutes             
Resolution # ER – 2012-11-28 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the October 10, 2012 meeting be approved. 
 
Yeas: All-5 
Absent: Culpepper, Stansbury 
 
 
Other Business – UBS Quarterly Report____________________________    
Rebecca Sorrenson and John Grant reviewed the UBS Quarterly Report, Fixed Income 
Recommendations, and Portfolio Performance Review.  
 
(John Grant and Rebecca Sorrenson left the meeting after presentation) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft November 14, 2012 
 
 

 2

 
Retirement Request           
Resolution # ER – 2012-11-29 
Moved by Darling 
Seconded by Gordon II 
 
RESOLVED, That the following retirement requests be approved: 

Name Maryann Hays Pamela Huffman 
Pension Program DC DB 
Retirement Date 01-09-13 12-1-12 
Department Building Operations Assessing 
Service Time 18 yrs, 7 mo 17 yrs, 10 mo 

 
Yeas: All-5 
Absent: Culpepper, Stansbury 
 
 
Other Business – RFI for Investment Consultant Responses Evaluation Form         
The Board reviewed the Draft RFI for an Investment Consultant Evaluation Form as 
presented by Tom Darling. Tom Darling discussed the evaluation measures and how 
final scoring would take place. 
 
 
INVESTMENTS                                                                 
The Board recommended that it revisit CAT and BTU equities in the spring of 2013, and 
that AVD be added to the watch list. 
 
Resolution # ER – 2012-11-30 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Gordon II 
 
RESOLVED, That the board authorizes the Pension Administrator to execute the 
following: 
 
 Sell:    10,000 shares of Alcoa 
    7,546 shares of Microsoft 
 
 Buy:  $1,500,000 of Templeton Global Total Return Fund A 
  $1,500,000 of BlackRock High Yield Bond Fund A 
  $1,500,000 of Alliance Bernstein High Income Fund 
 
Yeas: All-5 
Absent:  Culpepper, Stansbury 
 
 



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES – Draft November 14, 2012 
 
 

 3

Other Business- Change in time for December Meeting 
 
Resolution # ER – 2012-11-31 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Gordon II 
 
RESOLVED, That the board change the time of the December 12, 2012 Retirement Board 
Meeting from 12 pm to 1:30 pm: 
 
Yeas: All- 5 
Absent: Culpepper, Stansbury 
 
Public Comment         
None. 
 
The next meeting is December 12, 2012 at 1:30 p.m. at Troy City Hall, Conference 
Room C, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, MI  48084. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:07 p.m.  
 
 
 
__________________ 
 Mark Calice, Chairman 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Tom Darling, Pension Administrator 



Employee Retirement 
System

Year Ended 
June 30, 2012

Excerpts from the City's 
Comprehensive Annual 

Financial Report

Board of Trustees

Chairman Mark A. Calice
Vice Chairman Thomas J. Gordon II (DB)
System Administrator Thomas E. Darling, CPA
Trustees Dave Henderson (Council)

Michael Culpepper (Acting City Mgr.)
Steven Pallotta (DC)
William R. Need (DB Retiree)
Milt Stansbury

Prepared by:
The Department of Financial Services

City of Troy, Michigan



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

Combining Statement of Net Position
Employees' Retirement System
June 30, 2012

Employees'
Retirement

System

Cash 16,845,997$      
Interest receivable 92,364              
Investments

U.S. government securities 9,904,150         
Corporate bonds 9,325,864         
Corporate equities, preferred 397,800            
Corporate equities, common 101,628,434      
Mutual funds 36,522,970       
Municipal bonds 1,671,394         

Total assets 176,388,973    

Accounts payable 5,170                

Held in trust for pension benefits 146,047,162      
Held in trust for postemployment

healthcare benefits 30,336,641       

Total net position 176,383,803$  

Assets

Liabilities

Net position



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

Combining Statement of Changes in Net Position
Employees' Retirement System
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

Employees'
Retirement

System
Additions

Contributions
Employer contributions 2,195,476$       
Employee contributions 9,094,494         

Total contributions 11,289,970       

Investment income 
Interest 2,336,597         
Dividends 3,052,035         
Net adjustment in fair value of investments (6,857,965)        

Total investment earnings (1,469,333)        

Total additions 9,820,637       

Deductions
Benefits 14,229,015       
Administrative expenses 107,789            

Total deductions 14,336,804      

Change in net position (4,516,167)      

Net position held in trust, beginning of year for
Pension benefits 146,670,307      
Postemployment healthcare benefits 34,229,663       

Total net position held in trust, 
beginning of year 180,899,970      

Net position held in trust, end of year for
Pension benefits 146,047,162      
Postemployment healthcare benefits 30,336,641       

Total net position held in trust, end of year 176,383,803$  



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

Notes to Financial Statements

13. RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND PLAN

Group
December 31, 

2011

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 322
Vested terminated employees 11
Active employees 70

Employee Retirement System 

The City of Troy, Michigan, under the authorization of the City ordinance, maintains employee retirement
plans covering all full-time employees. The single-employer defined benefit plan provides retirement
benefits based on credited service time and average compensation with death and disability benefits,
and under some circumstances, payments to dependents. Normal retirement age is 65 with provisions for
early and late retirement.  Participants under such plan are required to contribute a fixed percentage of
their total compensation, with the City's contribution being an amount sufficient to cover current service
costs and prior service costs which are being funded and charged to operations over the average
expected active future working life time. The plan is closed to new participants. Current membership in
the system is as follows:

The employee retirement system financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Plan member contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer
contributions to each plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal commitment to
provide the contributions Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance withprovide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of each plan.

The City's funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates
that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to
pay benefits when due. The normal cost and amortization payment for the year ended June 30, 2012
were determined using the aggregate cost method. Unfunded actuarial liabilities were amortized as a
level percent of payroll on an open basis over the expected future service and pay for service of active
members.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, contributions totaling $11,289,970 ($2,195,476 employer and
$9,094,494 employee) were made in accordance with contribution requirements determined by an
actuarial valuation of the plan as of December 31, 2010, which was net of the amortization of assets in
excess of unfunded actuarial accrued liability. Employer and employee contributions were based on 26.6
percent and 1.5 to 4.0 percent, respectively, of covered payroll in the amount of $7,094,490 for the year
then ended. All contributions pertain to the pension plan only.

Significant actuarial assumptions are (a) a 6.5% investment return compounded annually, (b) salary
increases of 3.5% per year compounded annually (c) additional projected salary increases of 0.0%-2.5%
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) no cost of living adjustments after retirement The actuarial
value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility over a
five year period.



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

Notes to Financial Statements

Fiscal Years Ended 
June 30,

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 
December 31,

Annual 
Pension Cost 

(APC)

Percentage of 
APC 

Contributed
Net Pension 
Obligation

2010 2008 1,361$           100% -$                 
2011 2009 2,484            100% -                   
2012 2010 2,195            100% -                   

Three-Year Trend Information

Employee Retirement System ($ Amounts in Thousands)

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date,
the Plan was 95 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $153,564,000, and the
actuarial value of assets was $145,523,000, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$8,041,000. The covered payroll (annual payroll for active employee covered by the Plan) was $5,428,000
and the ratio for the UAAL to the covered payroll was 148.1%.

The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the
notes to the financial statements, present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial
values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALs for benefits. Because the
system uses the aggregate cost method which does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial
accrued liabilities, funded status and funding progress are reported using the entry age actuarial cost
method and the information presented is intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and
funding progress of the plan.

    



CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN

Required Supplementary Information
Employee Retirement System

Schedule of Funding Progress
Employee Retirement System Trust Fund

(amounts in thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a 

Actuarial Liability (Overfunded) Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL) - AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a / b) (c) ((b-a) / c)

12/31/2006 132,168$         119,299$         (9,755)$           107.9% 11,472$           -19.1%
12/31/2007 132,917           123,162           (2,111)             101.7% 11,046 64.4%
12/31/2008 128,249           126,138           7,054              94.9% 10,953 55.6%
12/31/2009 132,465           139,519           5,832              95.8% 10,483 65.1%
12/31/2010 133,400           139,232           5,832              95.8% 8,959 65.1%
12/31/2011 145,523           153,564           8,041              94.8% 5,428 148.1%

Schedule of Employer Contributions
Employee Retirement System Trust Fund

(amounts in thousands)

Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage

June 30, Contributions Contributed

2007 273$                100.0%
2008 273                 100.0%
2009 428                 100.0%
2010 1,361              100.0%
2011 2,484              100.0%
2012 2,195              100.0%



YTD

Transactions Prior Year Total

264,517.32 2,050,054.35

653,506.77 3,052,034.58

781,335.37 1,827,639.41

6,697,488.42 (8,685,607.63)

$7,478,823.79 ($6,857,968.22)

54,848.05 286,543.01

40,990.46 9,094,494.15

148,988.36 653,624.22

452,284.28 1,541,852.39

$642,263.10 $11,289,970.76

$9,093,959.03 $9,820,634.48

$9,093,959.03 $9,820,634.48

14,468.96 55,900.00

.00 30,270.00

$14,468.96 $86,170.00

2,664,979.22 10,335,991.50

1,055,224.85 3,893,022.56

$3,720,204.07 $14,229,014.06

2,339.12 21,619.47

$3,737,012.15 $14,336,803.53

$3,737,012.15 $14,336,803.53

9,093,959.03 9,820,634.48

3,737,012.15 14,336,803.53

$5,356,946.88 ($4,516,169.05)

Fund   731 - Employee's Retirement System

REVENUE

Department   000 - Revenue

Account Account Description

4669 Investment Income

4669.010 Investment Income Gain on Sale of Investments

4665 Interest Income

4666 Dividend Income

4674 Contributions

4674.100 Contributions Employees

4669.020 Investment Income Investment Income

4669 - Investment Income Totals

4670 Option Income

4674 - Contributions Totals

Department   000 - Revenue Totals

REVENUE TOTALS

4674.200 Contributions City Contr General

4674.400 Contributions PS

7801.010 Professional Services Adm & Prof 

7801.060 Professional Services Actuary Fees

EXPENSE

Department   852 - Employee Retirement System 

7801 Professional Services

7962 Other

7801 - Professional Services Totals

7874 Retirement Allowances

7874.010 Retirement Allowances Benefits

CITY OF TROY - Employee Retirement System for the Three 
Months Ended September 30, 2012

REVENUE TOTALS

EXPENSE TOTALS

Fund   731 - Employee's Retirement System Totals

Department   852 - Employee Retirement System Totals

EXPENSE TOTALS

Fund   731 - Employee's Retirement System Totals

7874.020 Retirement Allowances Hospitalization

7874 - Retirement Allowances Totals

 Run by Thomas Darling on 12/06/2012 02:11:58 PM Page 1 of 1 



 
Employee’s Retirement System  

 
 
Employees’ Retirement System Meeting Dates for 2013: 
 
Meetings take place at 12:00pm in City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Conference Room C 
 
Wednesday, January 9th, 2013 
Wednesday, February 13th, 2013 
Wednesday, March 13th, 2013 
Wednesday, April 10th, 2013 
Wednesday, May 8th, 2013 
Wednesday, June 12th, 2013 
Wednesday, July 10th, 2013 
Wednesday, August 14th, 2013 
Wednesday, September 11th, 2013 
Wednesday, October 9th, 2013 
Wednesday, November 13th, 2013 
Wednesday, December 11th, 2013 
 
 
 
 
Retiree Healthcare Benefits Plan & Trust Meeting Dates for 2013: 
 
Meetings take place at 1:00pm in City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Conference Room C 
 
Wednesday, January 9th, 2013 
Wednesday, April 10th, 2013 
Wednesday, July 10th, 2013 
Wednesday, October 9th, 2013 
 
 



Name Ticker ... Shares Cost Basis Quote/Price Market Value Gain/Loss Gain/Los... 52-Week Ra... P/E ratio

Large Cap Stocks * 74,120,978.96 * *

3M COMPANY             X MMM 5,000 443,493.23 91.13 455,650.00 12,156.77 2.74 77.51-95.46 14.58

ABBOTT LABORATORIES             X ABT 23,000 463,436.14 64.5899 1,485,567.70 1,022,131.56 220.55 53.80-72.47 15.75

ADT CORP COM ADT 625 0.00 44.18 27,612.50 27,612.50 0.00 34.68-45.98 26.46

AFLAC INC             X AFL 25,000 360,357.96 53.6801 1,342,002.50 981,644.54 272.41 38.13-53.75 8.90

ALCOA INC             X AA 10,000 129,882.87 8.61 86,100.00 -43,782.87 -33.71 7.97-10.92 N/E

AMERICAN TOWER CORP SBI AMT 5,000 318,090.87 74.61 373,050.00 54,959.13 17.28 56.99-76.22 42.15

AMGEN INC             X AMGN 3,100 160,274.49 89.29 276,799.00 116,524.51 72.70 56.00-89.95 16.00

APPLE INC             X AAPL 6,750 1,939,414.26 545.26 3,680,505.00 1,741,090.74 89.77 377.68-705.07 12.35

AT&T INC COM             X T 20,000 467,191.29 34.05 681,000.00 213,808.71 45.76 28.51-38.58 44.80

AUTOMATIC DATA PROCESSING INC. ADP 3,000 114,228.86 57.24 171,720.00 57,491.14 50.33 50.89-59.96 20.23

BANK OF AMER CORP             X BAC 10,000 168,536.26 10.455 104,550.00 -63,986.26 -37.97 4.92-10.56 27.51

BARD C R INC BCR 5,000 401,462.03 97.62 488,100.00 86,637.97 21.58 82.22-108.31 16.46

BED BATH & BEYOND INC BBBY 2,500 134,595.33 57.54 143,850.00 9,254.67 6.88 55.58-75.84 13.44

BOEING CO             X BA 5,000 364,115.95 74.06 370,300.00 6,184.05 1.70 66.82-77.83 12.79

C S X CORP             X CSX 26,000 394,706.68 20.25 526,500.00 131,793.32 33.39 18.88-23.71 11.31

CATALYST HEALTH SOLUTIONS INC CHSI 5,000 118,588.81 89.50 e 447,500.00 328,911.19 277.35 -

Caterpillar Inc             X CAT 5,000 359,277.67 86.384 431,920.00 72,642.33 20.22 78.25-116.95 8.84

CELGENE CORP CELG 4,000 225,746.44 79.47 317,880.00 92,133.56 40.81 58.53-81.24 22.08

CHESAPEAKE ENERGY CORP CHK 12,000 431,511.51 16.97 203,640.00 -227,871.51 -52.81 13.32-26.09 N/E

CHEVRON CORP             X CVX 16,900 952,506.84 105.39 1,781,091.00 828,584.16 86.99 95.73-118.53 8.64

CHEVRON CORP NEW             X CVX 8,000 284,761.85 105.39 843,120.00 558,358.15 196.08 95.73-118.53 8.64

CISCO SYS INC             X CSCO 20,000 640,103.11 19.202 384,040.00 -256,063.11 -40.00 14.96-21.30 12.39

CIT GROUP INC             X CIT 9,162 435,487.64 37.28 341,559.36 -93,928.28 -21.57 32.29-43.35 N/E

CIT GROUP INC NEW COM NEW             X CIT 3,047 * 37.28 113,592.16 * * 32.29-43.35 N/E

CLIFFS NAT RESOURCES INC             X CLF 12,000 406,067.53 29.818 357,816.00 -48,251.53 -11.88 28.05-78.85 2.98

COCA COLA CO             X KO 24,000 239,435.81 37.33 895,920.00 656,484.19 274.18 32.94-40.66 19.54

COLGATE-PALMOLIVE CO CL 10,000 421,673.47 107.25 1,072,500.00 650,826.53 154.34 87.22-110.97 21.03

CORNING INC GLW 10,000 99,139.24 12.435 124,350.00 25,210.76 25.43 10.62-14.62 9.87

Costco Wholesale Corp COST 5,000 422,060.72 105.595 527,975.00 105,914.28 25.09 78.81-105.80 27.15

CUMMINS INC CMI 2,000 194,811.59 101.55 203,100.00 8,288.41 4.25 82.20-129.51 10.61

DANAHER CORP DHR 12,000 259,890.35 53.41 640,920.00 381,029.65 146.61 45.06-57.15 17.17

DIRECTV             X DTV 4,920 0.00 49.65 244,278.00 244,278.00 0.00 41.45-55.17 12.23

DIRECTV COM USD0.01             X DTV 10,080 0.00 49.65 500,472.00 500,472.00 0.00 41.45-55.17 12.23

DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS             X DISCK 520 7,491.05 56.95 29,614.00 22,122.95 295.33 35.55-58.29

DISCOVERY COMMUNICATIONS 25470F... DISCA 520 8,343.07 61.665 32,065.80 23,722.73 284.34 39.33-63.20 22.42

DOMINION RESOURCES INC. 8.375% DRU 10,000 250,000.00 27.9301 279,301.00 29,301.00 11.72 26.57-29.74

DOVER CORP             X DOV 9,000 336,204.77 63.555 571,995.00 235,790.23 70.13 50.27-67.20 13.91

Portfolio
Value Page 1



Name Ticker ... Shares Cost Basis Quote/Price Market Value Gain/Loss Gain/Los... 52-Week Ra... P/E ratio

DOW CHEMICAL CO             X DOW 15,000 465,165.62 29.63 444,450.00 -20,715.62 -4.45 25.23-36.08 22.79

DUKE ENERGY CORP COM USD0.001 (P... DUK 3,200 0.00 64.58 206,656.00 206,656.00 0.00 59.63-71.13 20.50

DUKE ENERGY CORP NEW             X DUK 8,841 0.00 64.58 570,951.78 570,951.78 0.00 59.63-71.13 20.50

E M C CORP MASS             X EMC 2,000 27,723.00 25.16 50,320.00 22,597.00 81.51 21.25-30.00 20.62

EBAY INC EBAY 5,000 138,547.45 52.09 260,450.00 121,902.55 87.99 29.08-53.15 17.78

EMC CORP MASS             X EMC 17,000 209,532.02 25.16 427,720.00 218,187.98 104.13 21.25-30.00 20.62

EMERSON ELECTRIC CO EMR 4,000 161,023.63 50.83 203,320.00 42,296.37 26.27 43.59-53.78 19.04

EXPRESS SCRIPTS HLDG CO COM ESRX 4,050 0.00 54.30 219,915.00 219,915.00 0.00 43.02-66.06 29.67

EXXON MOBIL CORP             X XOM 4,000 4,724.61 87.90 351,600.00 346,875.39 7,341.88 77.13-93.67 9.28

FASTENAL CO FAST 8,000 159,461.13 41.61 332,880.00 173,418.87 108.75 37.61-55.05 29.94

FIDELITY NATIONAL INFORMATION SER... FIS 1,000 6,493.26 36.73 36,730.00 30,236.74 465.66 24.94-36.91 20.99

FISERV INC             X FISV 8,000 317,883.66 79.41 635,280.00 317,396.34 99.85 56.29-80.40 18.77

FLUOR CORP NEW             X FLR 5,000 266,815.15 53.72 268,600.00 1,784.85 0.67 44.99-64.67 14.88

FORD MTR CO DEL COM             X F 10,000 167,073.80 11.35 113,500.00 -53,573.80 -32.07 8.82-13.05 2.62

FRANKLIN RES INC BEN 3,000 303,299.19 127.74 383,220.00 79,920.81 26.35 92.08-133.91 14.27

FREEPORT-MCMORAN COPPER       & G... FCX 20,000 344,809.31 32.04 640,800.00 295,990.69 85.84 31.08-48.96 10.40

GENERAL DYNAMICS CRP             X GD 4,000 292,920.00 66.99 267,960.00 -24,960.00 -8.52 61.09-74.54 9.97

GENERAL ELECTRIC CO             X GE 16,000 47,910.68 21.32 341,120.00 293,209.32 611.99 16.18-23.18 16.40

GENERAL MOTORS CO             X GM 2,037 228,544.97 25.0999 51,128.50 -177,416.47 -77.63 18.72-27.68 9.40

GENERAL MOTORS COMPANY             X GM 6,997 394,100.00 25.0999 175,624.00 -218,476.00 -55.44 18.72-27.68 9.40

GENL ELECTRIC CO             X GE 10,000 357,402.80 21.32 213,200.00 -144,202.80 -40.35 16.18-23.18 16.40

GENL MILLS INC GIS 5,000 190,632.65 40.98 204,900.00 14,267.35 7.48 36.75-41.06 16.01

GENUINE PARTS CO GPC 5,000 316,434.00 64.25 321,250.00 4,816.00 1.52 55.58-66.91 16.14

GILEAD SCIENCES INC             X GILD 10,000 323,035.51 74.67 746,700.00 423,664.49 131.15 36.98-76.28 23.19

GOOGLE INC CL A             X GOOG 3,000 1,640,952.14 687.85 2,063,550.00 422,597.86 25.75 556.52-774.38 21.54

HALLIBURTON CO HOLDING CO FRMLY ... HAL 10,000 90,007.95* 33.53 335,300.00 * * 26.28-39.19 10.75

HARTFORD FINCL SERVICES       GROU... HIG 5,000 337,662.20 21.55 107,750.00 -229,912.20 -68.09 14.95-23.29 17.96

HARTFORD FINL SVCS GROUP INC        ... HIG 5,200 52,076.40 21.55 112,060.00 59,983.60 115.18 14.95-23.29 17.96

HEALTH CARE REIT INC             X HCN 7,000 184,525.41 59.04 413,280.00 228,754.59 123.97 49.32-62.80 109.33

HESS CORP             X HES 2,000 112,204.73 49.53 99,060.00 -13,144.73 -11.71 39.67-67.86 11.11

HONEYWELL INTL INC             X HON 14,172 720,472.29 61.65 873,703.80 153,231.51 21.27 51.42-63.89 20.55

INTEL CORP             X INTC 8,000 170,016.84 19.8685 158,948.00 -11,068.84 -6.51 19.23-29.27 8.68

INTUITIVE SURGICAL INC ISRG 5,000 516,251.62 520.85 2,604,250.00 2,087,998.38 404.45 420.84-594.89 33.65

JOHNSON CTLS INC             X JCI 6,000 52,142.82 27.44 164,640.00 112,497.18 215.75 23.37-35.95 15.42

JPMORGAN CHASE & CO             X JPM 5,000 113,523.16 41.37 206,850.00 93,326.84 82.21 30.42-46.49 8.57

KRAFT FOODS INC CLASS A             X KFT 5,000 154,406.59 25.6065 128,032.50 -26,374.09 -17.08 23.56-28.48 13.69

LIBERTY MEDIA CORP LMCA 183 5,030.35 106.52 19,493.16 14,462.81 287.51 72.70-116.10 7.27

LKQ CORP LKQX 6,000 16,922.10 21.75 130,500.00 113,577.90 671.18 14.09-22.29 25.29

Portfolio
Value Page 2



Name Ticker ... Shares Cost Basis Quote/Price Market Value Gain/Loss Gain/Los... 52-Week Ra... P/E ratio

MCDONALDS CORP MCD 21,100 988,961.81 86.9999 1,835,697.89 846,736.08 85.62 83.31-102.22 16.38

MCKESSON CORP MCK 5,000 393,168.79 94.45 472,250.00 79,081.21 20.11 74.89-97.23 15.64

MERCK & CO INC NEW COM             X MRK 16,147 0.00 44.50 718,541.50 718,541.50 0.00 34.86-48.00 20.32

METTLER-TOLEDO INTL MTD 5,000 386,376.45 185.57 927,850.00 541,473.55 140.14 142.82-190.02 21.26

MICROSOFT CORP             X MSFT 22,546 805,324.31 26.70 601,978.20 -203,346.11 -25.25 25.29-32.95 14.35

MORGAN STANLEY MS 8,340 101,081.02 17.0405 142,117.77 41,036.75 40.60 12.26-21.19 N/E

NORFOLK SOUTHERN CORP NSC 8,000 449,719.06 61.79 494,320.00 44,600.94 9.92 56.05-78.50 11.26

O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC NEW COM ORLY 4,000 94,174.23 91.20 364,800.00 270,625.77 287.37 75.61-107.13 20.00

OMNICOM GROUP             X OMC 2,000 79,140.93 49.765 99,530.00 20,389.07 25.76 41.04-54.76 14.47

OMNICOM GROUP INC             X OMC 8,000 274,205.25 49.765 398,120.00 123,914.75 45.19 41.04-54.76 14.47

ONEOK INC NEW             X OKE 30,000 403,242.36 44.475 1,334,250.00 931,007.64 230.88 39.32-49.79 26.95

ORACLE CORP             X ORCL 10,000 131,772.17 31.88 318,800.00 187,027.83 141.93 24.91-33.29 15.86

ORACLE CORPORATION             X ORCL 15,000 169,473.85 31.88 478,200.00 308,726.15 182.17 24.91-33.29 15.86

PANERA BREAD CO CL A PNRA 10,000 677,619.70 156.95 1,569,500.00 891,880.30 131.62 130.37-175.26 28.80

PEABODY ENERGY CORP             X BTU 5,000 378,864.58 26.14 130,700.00 -248,164.58 -65.50 18.78-39.74 8.95

PENTAIR LTD COM USD0.16 3/4             X PNR 299 0.00 48.21 14,414.79 14,414.79 0.00 32.50-48.99 100.44

PEPSICO INC PEP 35,000 1,224,345.80 69.79 2,442,650.00 1,218,304.20 99.51 62.15-73.66 18.61

PERRIGO CO             X PRGO 8,000 290,240.24 104.815 838,520.00 548,279.76 188.91 90.18-120.78 23.04

PERRIGO COMPANY             X PRGO 5,000 497,217.21 104.815 524,075.00 26,857.79 5.40 90.18-120.78 23.04

PFIZER INC             X PFE 7,000 63,480.04 25.71 179,970.00 116,489.96 183.51 19.73-26.09 20.24

PNC FINANCIAL SCVS GRP 6.125% FIX/... PNUFL 5,000 125,000.00 27.26 136,300.00 11,300.00 9.04 24.29-100.25

PRAXAIR INC PX 6,000 249,987.48 106.11 636,660.00 386,672.52 154.68 100.00-116.93 18.91

PROCTER & GAMBLE CO             X PG 22,625 224,489.81 69.53 1,573,116.25 1,348,626.44 600.75 59.07-70.83 22.29

PROGRESS ENERGY INC PGN 8,000 346,785.36 57.40 e 459,200.00 112,414.64 32.42 -

PVH CORPORATION COM USD1.00 PVH 5,000 370,614.45 111.61 558,050.00 187,435.55 50.57 66.36-117.22 19.21

RAYMOND JAMES FIN INC 6.90% RJD 1,200 30,000.00 27.526 33,031.20 3,031.20 10.10 25.20-28.28

REPUBLIC SERVICES INC CL A RSG 5,000 136,304.01 29.1716 145,858.00 9,553.99 7.01 25.15-31.32 17.06

RESMED INC RMD 5,000 157,157.54 40.73 203,650.00 46,492.46 29.58 23.37-42.30 21.66

ROPER INDS INC ROP 14,000 443,423.89 110.50 1,547,000.00 1,103,576.11 248.88 81.16-113.25 23.81

SCANA CORP NEW             X SCG 5,000 174,228.40 46.39 231,950.00 57,721.60 33.13 42.28-50.34 14.96

SCHLUMBERGER LIMITED COM STK US... SLB 24,000 417,120.56 71.51 1,716,240.00 1,299,119.44 311.45 59.12-80.78

SIGMA ALDRICH CORP SIAL 8,000 46,954.88 72.53 580,240.00 533,285.12 1,135.74 61.36-74.94 19.60

SMUCKER J M CO NEW             X SJM 4,000 241,085.93 88.41 353,640.00 112,554.07 46.69 70.50-89.39 20.42

SPECTRA ENERGY CORP             X SE 5,200 104,737.84 27.485 142,922.00 38,184.16 36.46 26.56-32.27 17.85

SPECTRA ENERGY CORP COM             X SE 13,800 0.00 27.485 379,293.00 379,293.00 0.00 26.56-32.27 17.85

ST JUDE MEDICAL INC STJ 5,000 167,454.45 34.59 172,950.00 5,495.55 3.28 30.25-44.80 14.41

STAPLES INC             X SPLS 5,000 110,520.10 11.335 56,675.00 -53,845.10 -48.72 10.57-16.93 1,133.50

Starbucks Corp             X SBUX 5,000 278,067.05 50.81 254,050.00 -24,017.05 -8.64 42.67-62.00 28.39

Portfolio
Value Page 3



Name Ticker ... Shares Cost Basis Quote/Price Market Value Gain/Loss Gain/Los... 52-Week Ra... P/E ratio

STRYKER CORP SYK 20,000 95,643.89 54.28 1,085,600.00 989,956.11 1,035.04 45.61-57.15 14.59

SYSCO CORP SYY 20,000 250,669.51 31.72 634,400.00 383,730.49 153.08 27.05-31.90 16.87

T ROWE PRICE GROUP INC             X TROW 5,000 251,288.72 64.35 321,750.00 70,461.28 28.04 53.57-66.66 20.11

TAIWAN SEMICONDUCTOR MANUFACT... TSM 5,000 55,263.45 16.93 84,650.00 29,386.55 53.18 12.14-17.47

TARGET CORP             X TGT 5,000 257,157.95 62.25 311,250.00 54,092.05 21.03 47.25-65.80 13.83

TEVA PHARMACEUTICAL INDS LTD ADR... TEVA 2,000 68,320.60 41.66 83,320.00 14,999.40 21.95 37.40-46.65 14.99

TEVA PHARMACEUTICALS IND      LTD I... TEVA 9,000 275,754.65 41.66 374,940.00 99,185.35 35.97 37.40-46.65 14.99

TEXTRON INC TXT 8,000 0.00 23.28 186,240.00 186,240.00 0.00 16.86-29.18 16.28

THE GOLDMAN SACHS GROUP INC PFD... GSF 10,000 250,000.00 26.09 260,900.00 10,900.00 4.36 24.30-27.02

TOTAL S.A SPONS ADR TOT 5,000 396,646.85 50.455 252,275.00 -144,371.85 -36.40 41.75-57.06

TRACTOR SUPPLY COMPANY TSCO 4,000 81,375.30 84.41 337,640.00 256,264.70 314.92 68.50-103.74 23.13

TRANSOCEAN LTD SWITZERLAND NEW... RIG 20,050 1,146,568.24 46.62 934,731.00 -211,837.24 -18.48 38.21-59.03

UNION PACIFIC CORP UNP 5,000 232,104.24 123.26 616,300.00 384,195.76 165.53 97.82-129.27 15.29

UNITED PARCEL SERVICE CL B             X UPS 10,000 618,507.38 73.59 735,900.00 117,392.62 18.98 69.56-81.79 21.21

UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORP             X UTX 17,000 572,110.61 80.35 1,365,950.00 793,839.39 138.76 70.71-87.50 14.30

URBAN OUTFITTERS INC URBN 5,000 77,065.25 36.39 181,950.00 104,884.75 136.10 23.42-40.65 27.36

US BANCORP 6.00% SERIES G UBDLP 5,000 * 27.82 139,100.00 * * 24.47-29.19

VARIAN MEDICAL SYSTEMS INC             X VAR 5,000 176,963.75 69.87 349,350.00 172,386.25 97.41 52.90-71.95 18.58

VERIZON COMMUNICATIONS             X VZ 15,420 373,967.92 44.18 681,255.60 307,287.68 82.17 36.80-48.77 40.91

VISA INC CL A V 4,000 377,027.06 147.91 591,640.00 214,612.94 56.92 95.05-150.72 46.81

VISA INC COM CL A V 5,000 394,366.14 147.91 739,550.00 345,183.86 87.53 95.05-150.72 46.81

WALGREEN CO             X WAG 5,000 196,513.07 35.67 178,350.00 -18,163.07 -9.24 28.53-37.34 14.74

WALGREEN CO NEW             X WAG 10,000 339,582.10 35.67 356,700.00 17,117.90 5.04 28.53-37.34 14.74

WALMART STORES INC             X WMT 10,000 538,761.04 71.85 718,500.00 179,738.96 33.36 57.18-77.60 14.78

WALT DISNEY CO             X DIS 10,000 152,049.30 49.66 496,600.00 344,550.70 226.60 34.51-53.40 15.87

WASTE MANAGEMENT INC WM 10,000 162,506.96 33.61 336,100.00 173,593.04 106.82 30.51-36.35 18.07

WATERS CORP WAT 10,000 739,217.91 84.27 842,700.00 103,482.09 14.00 70.88-94.47 17.93

WATSCO INC             X WSO 5,000 306,014.09 71.74 358,700.00 52,685.91 17.22 61.46-80.34 24.15

WEATHERFORD INTERNATIONAL LIMIT... WFT 5,000 97,405.56 10.77 53,850.00 -43,555.56 -44.72 8.84-18.33

WELLS FARGO & CO NEW             X WFC 5,000 27,288.16 32.99 164,950.00 137,661.84 504.47 25.18-36.60 10.37

YUM! BRANDS INC YUM 27,800 279,636.04 66.01 1,835,078.00 1,555,441.96 556.24 56.41-74.75 19.41

Small Cap Stocks 7,324,223.76 8,610,402.50 1,286,178.74 17.56

ALMOST FAMILY INC AFAM 5,000 200,124.66 21.02 105,100.00 -95,024.66 -47.48 14.01-26.87 10.41

AMERICAN SCIENCE &            ENGINEE... ASEI 3,000 259,595.93 66.30 198,900.00 -60,695.93 -23.38 46.30-78.99 29.73

ARES CAPITAL CORP COM STK USD0.0... ARCC 5,000 79,468.68 17.49 87,450.00 7,981.32 10.04 14.60-17.77 8.45

BIO-REFERENCE LABS INC   NEW           ... BRLI 5,000 110,670.39 27.25 136,250.00 25,579.61 23.11 12.08-32.86 19.33

BRADY CORP CL A BRC 4,000 64,506.67 31.89 127,560.00 63,053.33 97.75 24.72-34.94 N/E

Portfolio
Value Page 4



Name Ticker ... Shares Cost Basis Quote/Price Market Value Gain/Loss Gain/Los... 52-Week Ra... P/E ratio

BRUKER CORP             X BRKR 5,000 78,022.84 14.22 71,100.00 -6,922.84 -8.87 9.91-17.10 22.94

CLEAN ENERGY FUELS CORP             X CLNE 5,000 101,643.37 12.98 64,900.00 -36,743.37 -36.15 10.90-24.75 N/E

COGNEX CORP             X CGNX 5,000 169,104.43 36.46 182,300.00 13,195.57 7.80 29.24-44.80 22.37

COPANO ENERGY LLC COM         UNITS ... CPNO 10,000 298,179.02 30.65 306,500.00 8,320.98 2.79 24.24-38.03 N/E

CULLEN FROST BANKERS INC             X CFR 5,000 240,511.85 53.7672 268,836.00 28,324.15 11.78 50.05-61.11 14.22

DARLING INTL INC DAR 10,000 66,595.12 17.11 171,100.00 104,504.88 156.93 12.07-18.82 15.41

DECKERS OUTDOOR CORP DECK 12,000 206,692.11 41.43 497,160.00 290,467.89 140.53 28.53-109.36 10.28

DIAMOND FOODS INC DMND 5,000 391,490.70 15.1399 75,699.50 -315,791.20 -80.66 12.85-40.71 N/E

DIEBOLD INC             X DBD 5,000 228,607.62 30.21 151,050.00 -77,557.62 -33.93 27.66-42.93 11.49

FACTSET RESEARCH SYSTEMS INC FDS 1,500 26,270.06 93.07 139,605.00 113,334.94 431.42 85.38-109.20 22.59

FACTSET RESH SYSTEMS INC FDS 2,000 62,713.03 93.07 186,140.00 123,426.97 196.81 85.38-109.20 22.59

Flowers Foods Inc FLO 7,500 127,229.34 23.61 177,075.00 49,845.66 39.18 18.39-24.20 26.83

GAMESTOP CORP NEW             (HOLDIN... GME 1,000 24,452.66 26.025 26,025.00 1,572.34 6.43 15.32-28.00 N/E

GAMESTOP CORP NEW CL A GME 5,000 126,433.80 26.025 130,125.00 3,691.20 2.92 15.32-28.00 N/E

GFI GROUP INC             X GFIG 5,000 38,710.45 2.775 13,875.00 -24,835.45 -64.16 2.20-4.93 N/E

GLOBAL PAYMENTS INC GPN 8,000 349,288.46 44.54 356,320.00 7,031.54 2.01 39.37-53.93 20.53

GREEN MTN COFFEE              ROASTER... GMCR 13,000 182,521.65 41.80 543,400.00 360,878.35 197.72 17.11-71.15 18.33

HILLENBRAND INC             X HI 5,000 97,745.28 21.01 105,050.00 7,304.72 7.47 16.75-24.18 12.51

IDEX CORP IEX 10,500 215,255.25 44.91 471,555.00 256,299.75 119.07 34.06-45.25 18.41

IDEX CORPORATION IEX 2,250 29,507.37 44.91 101,047.50 71,540.13 242.45 34.06-45.25 18.41

INTERNATIONAL GAME TECHNOLOGY   ... IGT 20,000 469,182.13 14.65 293,000.00 -176,182.13 -37.55 10.92-18.10 17.03

JOS A BANK CLOTHIERS INC JOSB 10,000 316,007.42 42.92 429,200.00 113,192.58 35.82 39.54-54.99 12.33

LENDER PROCESSING SVCS INC COM  ... LPS 500 5,045.66 24.255 12,127.50 7,081.84 140.36 14.09-30.88 25.80

LENNOX INTL INC LII 5,000 210,437.94 51.76 258,800.00 48,362.06 22.98 31.96-53.52 23.42

MANITOWOC INC MTW 10,000 150,593.40 15.0008 150,008.00 -585.40 -0.39 8.30-16.97 24.19

MEDNAX INC             X MD 5,000 361,070.85 79.78 398,900.00 37,829.15 10.48 59.24-80.22 16.94

NEUSTAR INC CL A NSR 5,000 132,566.45 41.05 205,250.00 72,683.55 54.83 30.08-41.31 20.42

PENGROWTH ENERGY CORP PGH 10,000 203,637.46 5.085 50,850.00 -152,787.46 -75.03 5.00-11.17

PERKINELMER INC PKI 5,000 140,405.95 31.11 155,550.00 15,144.05 10.79 17.73-31.92 1,037.00

PORTFOLIO RECOVERY ASSOC      INC PRAA 4,000 192,314.39 99.30 397,200.00 204,885.61 106.54 60.12-106.85 14.52

QUALITY SYSTEMS INC             X QSII 5,000 36,690.60 18.14 90,700.00 54,009.40 147.20 15.04-45.00 16.05

REINSURANCE GROUP OF AMERICA RGA 5,000 230,659.06 52 260,000.00 29,340.94 12.72 48.36-60.69 6.77

SODASTREAM INTL LTD ORD             X SODA 5,000 359,589.59 40.605 203,025.00 -156,564.59 -43.54 28.28-48.13

SOUTH JERSEY IND INC SJI 5,000 187,934.87 50.88 254,400.00 66,465.13 35.37 45.81-57.99 14.79

SYNNEX CORP             X SNX 5,000 179,012.80 32.99 164,950.00 -14,062.80 -7.86 28.37-44.25 7.84

SYNTEL INC SYNT 5,000 167,334.95 56.345 281,725.00 114,390.05 68.36 44.29-65.19 13.10

TESORO LOGISTICS LP TLLP 100 2,100.00 44.94 4,494.00 2,394.00 114.00 28.39-47.24 26.59

THORATEC CORP NEW THOR 5,000 148,140.05 37.43 187,150.00 39,009.95 26.33 28.70-38.76 25.99

Portfolio
Value Page 5



Name Ticker ... Shares Cost Basis Quote/Price Market Value Gain/Loss Gain/Los... 52-Week Ra... P/E ratio

TRUE RELIGION APPAREL INC TRLG 5,000 56,159.45 23.79 118,950.00 62,790.55 111.81 20.22-37.82 12.72

International Stocks 2,311,689.37 2,324,636.50 12,947.13 0.56

BAIDU INC SPONS ADS REPR 0.10 ORD ... BIDU 5,000 590,629.90 88.5701 442,850.50 -147,779.40 -25.02 88.35-154.15 89.46

Bank of Nova Scotia BNS 5,000 267,163.70 56.4502 282,251.00 15,087.30 5.65 46.36-57.57 16.13

BP PLC SPONS ADR             X BP 5,000 276,165.38 41.36 206,800.00 -69,365.38 -25.12 36.25-48.34 6.16

DIAGEO PLC NEW GB SPON        ADR     ... DEO 2,000 128,034.73 119.58 239,160.00 111,125.27 86.79 83.52-120.72

GENPACT LTD             X G 5,000 79,583.73 15.75 78,750.00 -833.73 -1.05 14.11-19.52

RENESOLA LTD             X SOL 5,000 117,135.18 1.28 6,400.00 -110,735.18 -94.54 1.08-3.38

RESEARCH IN MOTION LTD-CAD RIMM 5,000 327,864.86 11.99 59,950.00 -267,914.86 -81.72 6.22-17.96 2.16

RIO TINTO PLC SPON ADR RIO 10,000 107,399.61 52.04 520,400.00 413,000.39 384.55 41.59-63.18

SHIRE PLC ADR SHPGY 5,000 351,945.37 90.4475 452,237.50 100,292.13 28.50 80.09-108.79 N/E

TYCO INTERNATIONAL LTD(SWITZERLA... TYC 1,250 65,766.91 28.67 35,837.50 -29,929.41 -45.51 26.17-58.12 12.69

Cash 1,752,796.40 1,752,796.40 0.00 0.0

Cash 1,752,796.40 1,752,796.40

Other 687,500.00 766,184.33 78,684.33 11.44

ENTERGY MISSISSIPPI INC. 6.20% EFM 10,000 250,000.00 26.9735 269,735.00 19,735.00 7.89 26.17-30.00

ENTERGY TEXAS INC 7.875% EDT 10,000 250,000.00 28.79 287,900.00 37,900.00 15.16 27.03-30.95

MOTORS LIQ CO GUC TR UBI MTLQU 511 0.00 19.03 9,724.33 9,724.33 0.00 10.00-20.20

QWEST CORPORATION 7.00% CTX 7,500 187,500.00 26.51 198,825.00 11,325.00 6.04 24.81-27.35

Unclassified * 20,066,200.68 * *

Asset Mixture * 22,233,312.95 * *

Totals: A=avg cost 77,447,245.... 129,874,512.32 52,427,267.... 67.69*

12/5/2012
File: Aggregate Accounts

Portfolio
Value Page 6


























































































	12.12.12 agenda
	11.14.12 - Minutes_Draft
	Pietro Pizzorni Retirement Request
	ERS Fiscal 6-30-12 Statements
	ERS 9-30-12 Stmt
	Notice of Meetings - Board Information Binder 2013
	12.12.12 Aggregate Accounts
	12.12.12 Old MIssion
	12.12.12 WellsFargo
	Wells 1
	Wells 2


